

BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor

STATE OF NEVADA



BRUCE BRESLOW
Director B&I

ALAINA BURTENSHAW
Chairman

GEORGE ASSAD
Commissioner

DAWN GIBBONS
Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MINUTES OF THE March 2, 2017 GENERAL SESSION

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Chairman Alaina Burtenshaw called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

2. Roll Call

Present in Las Vegas: Chairman Alaina Burtenshaw, Commissioner George Assad, Commissioner Dawn Gibbons, Administrative Attorney David Newton, Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Lidia Aronova, Acting Deputy Commissioner Ron Delgado, Compliance Audit Investigator III Rene Revens, Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka.

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Commissioner Dawn Gibbons led a recital of the pledge.

4. Public Comment

In Reno, Drew Ribar, A & A Towing, expressed concerns with current tow tariff rates, employee turnover and health of the towing industry. Michael Baumbach, Milne Towing, agreed with Mr. Ribar's statements.

5. Approval of Agenda

Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 85, 87, 102, and 104 be heard together. Administrative Attorney David Newton requested Item 90 be moved up to be heard before Item 74. Approved as modified 3- 0

6. Approval of the Minutes of the January 19, 2017 Agenda Meeting – FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Approved 2-0 Commissioner Gibbons abstained

7. Briefings from the Commissioners

Commissioner Assad thanked staff for their work on the Agenda and welcomed Commissioner Gibbons. Commissioner Gibbons stated she is happy to be on board and looks forward to serving the public. Chairman Burtenshaw echoed Commissioner Assad's comments and welcomed Commissioner Gibbons.

8. Briefing from the Acting Deputy Commissioner

Acting Deputy Commissioner Ron Delgado expressed his gratitude for the opportunity to serve in this capacity. He announced the NTA will be moving to a new office, located at 3300 West Sahara, Suite 200.

The move is tentatively set for the 23rd of March, and that all carriers will be notified. He also commended staff on their preparation for the move and their work on this agenda.

9. Report of Legal Counsel

Deputy Attorney General Csoka welcomed both Commissioner Gibbons and Acting Deputy Commissioner Delgado.

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS

Items 10 through 16 and 18 through 73 were considered collectively. Approved 2-0 Commissioner Gibbons abstained.

- 10. Impound 2693 and Citations 17745 and 17746** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 17745 and 17746 issued to Laquisha K. Lawrence for violations of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758 and NRS 706A.280. (GA)
- 11. Citation 18092** issued to Luis Horna for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)
- 12. Citations 18483, 18485, 18486, 18487 and 18488** issued to DDS Transportation Las Vegas, LLC for violations of NAC 706.206, NRS 706.463 (12 counts), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.23 (3 counts), NAC 706.229(1)/49 CFR 391.25, NAC 706.229(1)/49 CFR 391.27, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.3, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.5 (4 counts), and NAC 706.247/49 CFR 393.63 (4 counts). (GA)
- 13. Citations 18519 and 18520** issued to Jonathan Rey Rodriguez for violations of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758 and NRS 706A.280(GA)
- 14. Impound 2833 and Citation 18778 and 18779** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 18778 and 18779 issued to James Garvey for violations of NRS 706.386 and NAC 706A.280. (GA)
- 15. Impound 2686 and Citation 18817** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 18817 issued to A Limousine Company for violations of NRS 706.386 and NAC 706.381. (GA)
- 16. Citation 18818** issued to Anthony Thomas Shawndel Allen for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)
- 17. Citation 18851** issued to Rodolfo Pacheco-Reyes for a violation of NRS 706A.280. (GA)
Mr. Pacheco-Reyes appeared in Las Vegas. He offered an explanation for his failure to appear at the hearing. Hearing reset to March 8, 2017 at 1:30 p.m.
- 18. Impound 2936 and Citation 18879** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 18879 issued to Chris Robinson for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)
- 19. Impound 2866 and Citation 18880** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 18880 issued to Cherry Mariano for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)
- 20. Citation 18901** issued to Geary Vance Marshall for a violation of NAC 706.228. (GA)

21. **Impound 2710 and Citations 18920 and 18921** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 18920 and 18921 issued to David Allen Borchers for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280. (GA)
22. **Citation 18922** issued to Tommy Lynn Oehler for violations of NRS 706.758. (GA)
23. **Citation 18923** issued to Jorge Garcia for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)
24. **Citations 19003 and 19004** issued to Luel Girma Woldemariam for violation of NAC 706.360, NRS 706.463, and NAC 706.354. (GA)
25. **Impound 2688** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to PV Holdings, LLC. (GA)
26. **Impound 2689** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Enterprise Holdings. (GA)
27. **Impound 2692** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Nereida Guzman(GA).
28. **Impound 2937** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hermelinda Gomez-DeGarcia. (GA)
29. **Impound 2943** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to EAN Holdings LLC. (GA)
30. **Impound 2944** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul of Arizona. (GA).
31. **Impound 2949** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Co. of Arizona. (GA)
32. **Impound I-2950** The Impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Jimmy Alexander Hernandez-Godoy. (GA)
33. **Impound 2951** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Co. of Arizona. (GA)
34. **Citation 17569** issued to All My Sons Moving for violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.11 (32 counts).
35. **Citation 17612** issued to Filimone Tuavao for violation of NAC 706.13775 and NAC 706.194.
36. **Citation 17721** issued to Elko, Inc. for a violation of NRS 706.167.
37. **Citation 17742** issued to Vilmos Balazs for a violation of NAC 706.228.
38. **Citation 17744** issued to Tesfay Samuel for a violation of NAC 706.228.
39. **Citations 17803, 17804, 17805 and 17806** issued to Bosch Motors for violations of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.21 (3 counts), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 40.25, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.23, NAC 706.247/49

CFR 391.31, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.51, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 382.301 (2 counts) and NAC 706.247/49 CFR 382.305.

40. **Citation 17821** issued to City Auto Towing for a violation of NAC 706.420 (3 counts).
41. **Citation 17860** issued to Bell Trans for a violation of NAC 706.462(1) (8 counts).
42. **Citation 17861** issued to Presidential Limousine for a violation of NRS 706.462(1) (2 counts).
43. **Citation 17864** issued to TC Nevada, LLC for a violation of NRS 706.462(1) (2 counts).
44. **Citations 18237 and 18240** issued to Raymond Gulley for violations of NAC 706.234, NAC 706.329 and NAC 706.376.
45. **Citation 18238** issued to L. Doyle Harris for a violation of NAC 706A.350.
46. **Citation 18241** issued to Patrick Collins for a violation of NAC 706.234.
47. **Citation 18242** issued to Hei Son Lyons for a violation of NAC 706.234.
48. **Citations 18427 and 18926** issued to Kyle Raymond Schaefer for violation of NAC 706.228 (2 counts).
49. **Citations 18468, 18469, 18470 and 18471** issued to Oasis Moving & Storage for violations of NAC 706.311 (2 counts), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 40.25 and 382.405 (3 counts), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.25(a)(1)(b), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.23(a)(2), NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.31, NAC 706.247/49 CFR 382.301(a) and NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.13.
50. **Citation 18513** issued to Tri-State Towing for violation of NAC 706.427 and NAC 706.4275.
51. **Citation 18516** issued to William Tipton III for a violation of NAC 706A.350.
52. **Citation 18518** issued to 911 Towing for a violation of NRS 706.4477.
53. **Citation 18521 and 18522** issued to Esayas Woldemariam for violation of NAC 706.234, NAC 706.228, NAC 706.329 and NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.41.
54. **Citation 18606** issued to Warren's Homework for violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.11(a)(b)(1) (18 counts) and NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.13 (c).
55. **Citation 18607** issued to Maria Valencia for a violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 382.305.
56. **Citation 18777** issued to Ibrahima Conde for a violation of NAC 706.228.
57. **Citation 18819** issued to Jose David Cruz for a violation of NRS 706.386.
58. **Citation 18820** issued to John Caso for a violation of NAC 706.329.
59. **Citation 18824** issued to Sogho Soghomonian for violation of NAC 706.329.
60. **Citation 18825** issued to Jason Roman for a violation of NAC 706.329.

61. **Citation 18830** issued to Entourage for a violation of NAC 706.191.
62. **Citation 18831** issued to LVAM, LLC for a violation of NRS 706.4634 (8 counts).
63. **Citation 18854** issued to Vahan Sedrakyan for a violation of NAC 706A.240.
64. **Citation 18855** issued to Alexeis Avila Parodis for a violation of NAC 706A.240.
65. **Citation 18856** issued to Alexander Maynfeld for a violation of NAC 706A.240.
66. **Citation 18857** issued to Muse Hassan for a violation of NAC 706A.240.
67. **Citation 18858 and 18859** issued to Arif Milani for violation of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758 and NRS 706A.280.
68. **Citation 18904** issued to Ponce Q. Galera for violation of NAC 706.228 and NAC 706.329.
69. **Citation 18918** issued to James Michael Scott for a violation of NAC 706.329.
70. **Citation 18927** issued to Frank Canonico for a violation of NAC 706.360.
71. **Citation 19001** issued to Guy Culley for a violation of NAC 706.329.
72. **Citation 19002** issued to Life Trans Inc. for a violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.17.
73. **Impound I-2780** issued to DTG Operations Inc./Dollar RAC for a violation of NRS 706.476.

**APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE**

74. **Docket 16-01014** The expired temporary discontinuance granted from January 15, 2016 through January 15, 2017 of services provided by Wheeler Freightways under CPCN 7021, Sub 1, and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.
*Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket, indicated staff has lost contact with carrier and requested an Order to Show Cause for the next subsequent Agenda.
Approved 3-0*
75. **Docket 16-08004** The Application of A Blue Sky Towing and Transportation, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Approved 3-0
76. **Docket 16-08010** The Request of Las Vegas Master Tow, LLC seeking to extend the previously granted temporary discontinuance of services provided under CPCN 7332 from February 11, 2017 through August 11, 2017. Staff investigation concluded.
Approved 3-0
77. **Docket 16-10016** The Joint Application of Quick Tow, Inc. d/b/a Quick Response for authority to sell and transfer and of LV Quik Tow, LLC d/b/a LV Quik Tow to purchase and acquire the

authority to provide tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 7202, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Approved 3-0

- 78. Docket 16-10021** The Application of JC'S Best Auto Repair, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Juan Marquez appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0

- 79. Docket 16-11013** The Application of Vegas Towing Team, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Approved 3-0

- 80. Docket 16-11014** The Application of Easy Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Bruno Meza appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0

- 81. Docket 16-11027** The Application of Vides Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Approved 3-0

- 82. Docket 17-02014** The temporary discontinuance from February 16, 2017 through May 16, 2017 of consent only tow car services provided by Danny Lopez d/b/a R.L.B. Towing under CPCN 7322. Staff investigation concluded.

Approved 3-0

**APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE**

- 83. 16-01015** The expired temporary discontinuance granted from January 13, 2016 through January 13, 2017 of services provided by Alltour of America, Inc. under CPCN 2172 and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket, indicated staff has lost contact with carrier and requested an Order to Show Cause for the next subsequent Agenda.

Approved 3-0

- 84. Docket 16-06012** SW Stretch Limited d/b/a Exclusive VIP Transportation seeks to extend the previously granted temporary discontinuance of services provided under CPCN 2051, Sub 1, from December 7, 2016 through May 19, 2017. This request requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.

James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request. Approved 3-0

- 85. Docket 16-08020** The Joint Application of Mammoth Transportation d/b/a Mammoth Transportation for authority to sell and transfer and of Mammoth Transportation, Series d/b/a Mammoth Transportation to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 2072, Sub 1. Mammoth Transportation, Series is a series under Platinum LV Transportation, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Items 85, 87, 102 and 104 were heard collectively. Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the requests. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicants. Approved 3-0

- 86. Docket 16-10007** The Application of Nevada Busing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Megan Weaver of Nevada Busing, LLC appeared in Reno. Approved 3-0

- 87. Docket 16-11019** The Joint Application of Celebrity Coaches of America, Inc. d/b/a Celebrity Coaches for authority to sell and transfer and of Celebrity Coaches, Series d/b/a Celebrity Coaches to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 2105. Celebrity Coaches, Series is a series under Platinum LV Transportation, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Items 85, 87, 102 and 104 were heard collectively. Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the requests. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicants. Approved 3-0

EXEMPTION REQUESTS

- 88. Docket 17-02012** American Alpine Institute, Ltd. seeks a declaration of exemption pursuant to NAC 706.147 from the requirement to obtain a CPCN to provide intrastate commercial passenger transportation in Nevada. The Applicant has also filed a Petition to Deviate from certain requirements of NAC 706.147.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request. Doug Foust appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Livery Operators Association (LOA) and James Kent, Esquire also appeared. A discussion ensued with regard to transportation charges, locations where passengers will be picked up and domicile of company. Motion to table item until the next subsequent agenda. Approved 3-0.

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS

- 89. Docket 17-01016** The voluntary cancellation of Douglas Parking, LLC Permit MV 6144 Sub 3. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request. Approved 3-0

PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION

- 90. Docket 14-11041**—The Authority will consider the” Emergency Motion to Stay Enforcement of Order” filed by LV Car Service, LLC, and the Opposition filed by AWG.

Neil Tomlinson, Esquire appeared in Reno on behalf of LV Car Services, LLC. Brent Carson, Esquire appeared on behalf of AWG. A discussion ensued. Commissioner Assad stated there is no new evidence and therefore no basis for a new hearing. Motion to deny request – Approved 3-0

- 91. Docket 17-01003** The Authority will consider the Petition of Kenneth E. Tyson for reconsideration of the Authority’s denial of his driver permit application. (No 1626) at the May 2015 general session.

Kenneth Tyson appeared in Reno and offered a brief explanation. Motion to grant reconsideration and set the matter for further proceedings. Approved 3-0

- 92. Docket 17-01026--** The Authority will consider the “Petition for Reconsideration” of the fines imposed under citation 18569 filed by John Crumley.

Items 92 and 93 were heard collectively. John Crumley appeared and requested the fine be reduced to \$40,000, which he would pay today via wire transfer. Petition granted so long as wire transfer received before end of business today. Approved 2-0 Commissioner Gibbons abstained

93. Docket 17-01026 The Authority will consider the Petition of John Crumley for an extension of time from February 16, 2017, to March 1, 2017, to pay \$45,000 in fines agreed to at the December, 2016 Agenda Meeting.

Items 92 and 93 were heard collectively. John Crumley appeared and requested the fine be reduced to \$40,000, which he would pay today via wire transfer. Petition granted so long as wire transfer received before end of business today. Approved 2-0 Commissioner Gibbons abstained

94. Docket 17-02011 The Authority will consider the Petition of Christopher Baker for reconsideration of the Authority's denial of his driver permit application. (No 2744) at the December 2015 general session.

Patrick Driscoll, Esquire and Christopher Baker appeared and detailed the reason for his failure to appear. Driver permit proceeding rescheduled to 2:20 pm on March 10, 2017. Approved 2-0 Commissioner Gibbons abstained.

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS

95. Docket 16-12014 The Application of Ronald M. Perlman d/b/a Reno Tahoe Limousine for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1101. Staff investigation concluded.

Financial Analyst Lidia Aronova summarized the request and indicated staff was opposed due to the inability of the general public to verify rates. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant. A lengthy discussion ensued, item trailed to the afternoon to enable Mr. Kent to talk to his client to verify how they determine rates. Upon resuming the meeting, Applicant stated the request for Tier II rates is withdrawn. Motion to approve application with the exception of Tier Two rates. Approved as modified 3-0

96. Public Comment

None

1:15 PM AFTERNOON SESSION

97. Public Comment

None

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS

98. Docket 15-11008 The Joint Application of JTB America, LTD for authority to sell and transfer and of Lassen Tour & Travel, Inc. to purchase and acquire 100% of the corporate stock of Sunrise Plaza Transportation of Nevada, Inc. d/b/a Lassen Tours, a carrier authorized to provide charter bus, airport transfer, scenic tours, and special services within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 2028, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Commissioner Assad summarized the application and indicated staff support. Robert Terakawa of JTB America, Ltd. and Patrick Swan of Lassen Tour & Travel, Inc. appeared. Approved 3-0

99. Docket 16-01008 The Application of GMT CARE, LLC for an expansion of operating authority granted under CPCN 1115, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)

Commissioner Assad summarized the application and indicated staff support. Brent Carson, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0

- 100. Docket 16-05028** The Application of Universal Limousine Service, LLC d/b/a ULS for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter limousine, airport transfer, and special service within Clark County, Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Commissioner Assad summarized the application and indicated staff support. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0
- 101. Docket 16-08007** The Application of Smitty Movers, LLC for an expansion of operating authority granted under CPCN 3354. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Commissioner Assad summarized the application and indicated staff support. Steven Smith Sr. appeared on behalf of the applicant. Approved 3-0
- 102. Docket 16-08019** The Joint Application of Mammoth Transportation d/b/a Mammoth Limousine for authority to sell and transfer and of Mammoth Limousine, a Series d/b/a Mammoth Limousine to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter limousine service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 1105. Mammoth Limousine, Series is a series under Platinum LV Transportation, LLC. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Items 85, 87, 102 and 104 were heard collectively. Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the requests. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicants. Approved 3-0
- 103. Docket 16-09010** The Application of My Ride to Work, LLC d/b/a My Ride to Work for a Permit to operate as a contract motor carrier in the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Commissioner Assad summarized the application. Scott Scherer, Esquire appeared with Robyn Donahue, owner of My Ride to Work in Las Vegas. Approved 3-0
- 104. Docket 17-02004** The Joint Application of Platinum LV Transportation, LLC to sell and transfer and the various Series entities set up under control of Platinum LV Transportation, LLC to purchase and acquire transportation service authorities within the State of Nevada granted under CPCNs 2116, d/b/a Platinum LV Transportation 1217, Sub 2, d/b/a Bell Limo, 2118, Sub 4, d/b/a Whittlesea Checker Taxi, and 2350, Sub 8, d/b/a Airport Mini Bus, Staff investigation concluded. (GA)
Items 85, 87, 102 and 104 were heard collectively. Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the requests. James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicants. Approved 3-0

ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE

- 105. Docket 16-10012** The Order to Show Cause issued to A Limousine Company, LLC, as to why Certificate of MV 6146 should not be suspended or revoked. (GA)
Administrative Attorney Newton stated he spoke to the owner of A Limousine Company, LLC yesterday, and that he had reviewed proposed order. Approved 3-0

DISCUSSION ITEMS

- 106. Docket 17-01007** Reconsideration of the non-consent tow carriers “dispatch fees (for law enforcement tows)” as an “at cost” tariff rate and whether the current charge is just and reasonable pursuant to NRS 706.311
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request. A discussion ensued. Item tabled to the next subsequent Agenda.
- 107. Discussion Item** - The Authority may consider modifying certain certificates of public convenience and necessity that contain antiquated language, which is no longer applicable or is unnecessarily restrictive.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized. James Kent, Esquire and Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esquire appeared. A discussion ensued. It was stated that a petition or letter requesting an advisory opinion for the removal of the kellying language should be filed on behalf of the affected carriers.

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS

(Closed sessions may be held for items 108 through 111 to consider character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, and physical or mental health pursuant to NRS 241.030.)

108. Permit 2688 – The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Erwin Ellis for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Ellis failed to appear for a meeting on October 18, 2016. Staff investigation concluded.

Permit denied 3-0

109. Permit 2788 – The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Steven Gutierrez for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Gutierrez failed to appear for a meeting on October 18, 2016. Staff investigation concluded.

Permit denied 3-0

110. Permit 2452 The Authority will determine whether to revoke the driver’s permit issued to Lonnie Crosby pursuant to NRS 706.462. Crosby failed to make payments as agreed on past due fines. Staff investigation concluded.

Lonnie Crosby appeared and stated he has not paid as the company he worked for was purchased and he is no longer employed. Permit is revoked by operation of law and therefore no action taken.

111. Permit 1844— The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Tekle Ghebregzhi for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462. Staff investigation concluded.

Item tabled to the next subsequent Agenda.

112. Public Comment

None

113. Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m.